ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 22, 2013
8:01 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harriet Drunmond

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska

relating to state aid for education.
- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR1

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

01/16/13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/ 13
01/16/13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/16/13 (H EDC, JUD, FIN

02/ 22/ 13 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HIR 1, as the sponsor of
resol ution.

JI M POUND, Staff
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

t he

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2013



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
resol uti on sponsor,

KEVI N MCGEE

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
TOM FI NK

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
DENNI S FRADLEY
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
KATHLEEN SQUI RES
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
LADAVWN DRUCE, Vi ce President
Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati
Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
DREW BAKER

Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
JENNI E HAMMOND
Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
LON GARRI SON, Menber
Sit ka School Board
Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
JOSHUA DECKER, Att orney
ACLU of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi
LANCE ROBERTS

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifi

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE

Present ed
Representative Keller.

HR 1, on behalf of the

ed in opposition to HIR 1.
ed in support of HIR 1.
ed in support of HIR 1.
ed in support of HIR 1.

on (NEA) Al aska

ed in opposition to HIR 1.
ed in support of HIR 1.

ed in support of HIR 1.

ed in opposition to HIR 1.
ed in opposition to HIR 1.
ed in support of HIR 1.

- 2- February 22, 2013



RON ARNOLD, Representative

Educati onal Support Staff Association (ESSA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

ZEBULAN WOODVAN
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

ANDY HOLLEMAN
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

JERRY COVEY, Education and Non-Profit Consultant
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 1.

TUCKERVAN BABCOCK
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 1.

DOUG HODGES
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 1.

TAMW SM TH

Fai r banks Educati on Associ ati on (FEA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

TOYA SANDERSON

Fai r banks Support Staff Association (FSSA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion on HIR 1.

ARNCLD COHEN

Paci fic Northern Acadeny

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

JESS ELLIS
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 1.

TAMM GANGULI, Menber
Al aska Parent Teacher Associ ation (PTA)

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2013



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

WANDA LAWS, Presi dent
Nati onal Associ ation
( NAACP)

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

BOB CGRI FFI N
Eagl e Ri ver, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JOHN TOBI A
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

CHI NH GRI FFI N
Eagl e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

GLEN BI EGEL

Al aska Hone Educators
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

DAVI D NEES
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

LAVWRENCE VEI SS
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JANE ANVI C
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

VI CTOR FI SCHER
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
LAURA BONNER
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

DAN LORI NG

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE

Testified in opposition to HIR 1.

for

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Associ

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

t he Advancement

of

Col ored People

ed in opposition to HIR 1.

ed in

ed in

ed in

ation

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

support

support

support

support

support

opposi ti

opposi ti

opposi ti

opposi ti

of

of

of

of

of

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

to

to

to

to

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

HIR 1.

February 22, 2013



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion on HIR 1

CARL ROSE, Executive Director

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards (AASB)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 1

MARY GRAHAM
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR1

JODI E TAYLOR
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 1

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:01: 00 AM

CHAIR LYNN GATTIS called the House Education Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representatives Gattis, Seaton,
Rei nbold, and Saddler were present at the call to order.
Representatives Drummond and P. WIlson arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HIR 1- CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

8:01: 44 AM

CHAI R GATTI S announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 1, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to state aid for
educat i on.

8:02:26 AM

The commttee took a brief at-ease.

8:03: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
the sponsor, stated that proposed HIR 1 would give Al askans the
opportunity to vote to amend the Alaska State Constitution to

i nclude the statenent: "nothing in this section shall prevent
paynment from public funds for the direct educational benefit of

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2013



students as provided by law." He offered his belief that a vote
against HHR 1 would state that a person did not want to allow
Al askans to decide whether that sentence should be included, or
would be an attenpt at preventing Al askans from naking this
deci si on. Directing attention to page 1, lines 8 - 11, he
pointed out that HIR 1 would also delete the follow ng: " No
nmoney shall be paid from public funds for the direct benefit of
any religious or other private educational institution.”

8:05:29 AM

JIM POUND, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Alaska State
Legislature, stated that HIR 1 "noves Al aska' s education system
f orward. It elimnates a federal nandate." He offered his
belief that this was in response to an Al aska Suprenme Court
interpretation to not permt state funding to a private or
religious school. He assessed that HIR 1 was a request to
Al askans for whet her "they want to expand educational

opportunities from K through 16." He suggested that other bills
had supported needs based schol ar shi ps and academ c
schol arships, which all went to the University of Al aska. He
stated, "There's nothing wong with the University of Al aska

but in nmany cases, these students want to have options to go
somewhere else.” He assured the comrittee that HIR 1 would put
those options to the voters in Al aska, and would "not make any
deci sions, today, having to do with public funding.” He stated
that the proposed resolution was not a voucher bill, and was not
a parent or school <choice |egislation. He offered his
interpretation that it would not bankrupt the public school

system because it would create conpetition, and that it was not
discrimnatory. He stated that the proposed resolution only did
one thing, it "puts the vote before the Al aska people to decide
if their legislature, and then this legislature can decide,

|ater on, whet her there's school choi ce, parent choi ce,

vouchers, or whatever you wanna call them"

8:07:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how many tinmes the Alaska State
Constituti on had been anended.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that he did not have that
information, and suggested that there were people on |line
waiting to testify.

8:08: 23 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2013



CHAIR GATTIS asked to clarify that the proposed resolution only
asked the Al askan voters "if it's okay."

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied "that's exactly right. That's al
it's about." In response to a further question from Chair
Gattis, he said that approval of the resolution would not create
education vouchers or scholarships, that it would only allow
Al askans to decide whether this sentence should be included in
the Alaska State Constitution: "nothing in this section shal
prevent paynment from public funds for the direct educational
benefit of students as provided by [aw "

8:09: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON cal l ed attention to the commttee that the
proposed resolution also deleted |anguage, which he read: "No
nmoney shall be paid from public funds for the direct benefit of
any religious or other private educational institution." He

stated that a vote for the proposed resolution would express
agreenent that noney could be paid to religious and private
educational institutions.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that the aforenentioned sentence,
whi ch woul d be deleted by the proposed resolution, was "outside
of the scope of a lot of discussion anyway on this bill,"” and he
reiterated that the proposed resolution only added the sentence:
"nothing in this section shall prevent paynent from public funds
for the direct educational benefit of students as provided by
I aw. "

8:10: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the proposed resolution
allowed insertion of sone |anguage and deletion of other
| anguage. He enphasized that it was not possible to vote for
hal f the resolution

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his agreenent.

8:12: 02 AM

CHAI R GATTIS asked if approval of the proposed resolution would
create a school voucher or schol arship program

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that it would not.

8:12:11 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND stated that an assunption from the

removal of the text on page 1, lines 8-10, would be that "noney
from public funds shall be paid for the direct benefit of
religious or other private educational institutions." She asked

about the source of funding to pay the several mllion dollars
in additional tuition for the 2500 students in Anchorage who
currently attended a private or religious school.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed resolution did
not appropriate or spend funds, and did not presunme that noney
shall be spent. He assessed that the only cost from the
proposed resolution would be to print the ballots.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND of fered her belief, "that appears to be
skirting the issue, M. Keller." She expressed an assunption
that deletion of the text would allow noney to be paid to the
private or religious institutions. She repeated her request for
the source of tuition funding, as it was necessary to "consider
the down |ine inplications of a positive vote on this
constitutional anendnent.”

8:13: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER endorsed that the application and
presunption by Representati ve Dr urmond was not val i d,
mai ntai ning that the proposed resol ution "does not do that."

CHAI R GATTI S opened public testinony and stated that any witten
testimony would be included in the official record.

8:15: 04 AM

KEVIN MCGEE, stating that he was the parent of three children
who had graduated from the Anchorage School District, declared
his opposition to proposed HIR 1. He described the educationa
careers of his three children and said that he did not see a
reason to change the Al aska State Constitution. He opined that
private school tuition should be paid by parents.

8:17:55 AM

TOM FINK stated his support for proposed HIR 1, offering his
belief that, as the school system in Al aska was "broken," this
woul d renove the major obstacle for correction of the system
He said that the legislature was limted to funding public
school s, rather than funding the education of Al aska's children

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2013



He stated that passage of this proposed resolution would allow
the legislature to "answer the educational needs of our

children.” He offered his belief that the primary opposition to
the proposed resolution was the National Education Association
(NEA), in order to protect "their own power structure, not for

t he education of our children.”
8:19:45 AM
DENNI S FRADLEY, referring to both the United States Constitution

and the Alaska State Constitution, stated that direct government
support for religious institutions was prohibited and that the

proposed resolution did not alter that prohibition. He
expressed his support for HIR 1 and referenced the options for
school <choice that existed in other states. He offered his

belief that conpetition between public and private schools would
make the schools better in Al aska.

8:22: 09 AM

KATHLEEN SQUI RES st ated her support for HIR 1, and descri bed her
limted choices as the parent of a child with special needs.
She opined that the public should be allowed to decide whether
to fund the educational system

8:24:28 AM

LADAWN DRUCE, Vice President, National Education Association
(NEA) Al aska, stated that NEA Al aska opposed proposed HIR 1.
She declared that "children are our special interest.” She
poi nted out that Al aska had both school and program choice in
the public schools, wth many school districts offering a
variety of alternatives. She said that the proposed resol ution
woul d all ow public funds to go to private or religious schools.
Directing attention to the concept of conpetition to inprove the
public schools, she declared that there was not any evidence to
support this. She referred to the educational summit in
Anchorage, which had reported that the majority of demand for
choice was within the public school system She declared that a
voucher system would not |ead to higher student achievenent, and
directed attention to two exanples included with her submtted
witten testinony. She suggested a variety of funding needs for
t he schools. She declared that NEA Alaska was committed to
great public education for every child, and was working to
ensure a quality, qualified teacher in every classroom She
enphasi zed that Alaska did not need to change its constitution

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- February 22, 2013



rather, to work together to inprove the public schools, educate
the children, and strengthen the comunities.

8:26:35 AM

DREW BAKER stated that "our country has a history of opposing
nmonopolies, and they do it for a reason.” He declared that
conpetition would nake our econony stronger, and that he
supported proposed HIR 1, in opposition to "the nonopoly of the
public school ."

8:27:26 AM

JENNIE HAMMOND offered her belief that parents had the
responsibility to choose the best education for their children
She shared that her children went to a private school. She
decl ared her support for proposed HIR 1.

8:28:52 AM

LON GARRI SON, Menber, Sitka School Board, stated his opposition
and concern for proposed HIR 1. He enphasized that the franers
of the Alaska State Constitution wunderstood the value and
necessity for offering every student in the state the
opportunity for a quality public education. He expressed that
the foundation of denocracy resided in the ability to educate
t he popul ati on. He assessed that the theory for conpetition in
the schools to bring inprovenent was naive and incorrect. He
argued that this proposed resolution would, instead, create
segregation of the haves and have nots. He asked what oversight
woul d exist for the appropriate use of public funds. He asked
if every private school would be required to accept and provide
the opportunities demanded by state and federal law for any
child, no matter what their inpairnent. He questioned the idea
that conpetition anmong schools would result in greater student
achi evement, as public schools had to work within the boundari es
of negotiated agreenents for salary and benefits. He suggested
other neans for attaining student achievenent, and offered his
belief that these issues were not central to the proposed
resol ution.

8:31:24 AM
JOSHUA DECKER, Attorney, ACLU of Al aska, stated that ACLU Al aska
was in opposition to proposed HIR 1. He said that the franers

of the Alaska State Constitution had "squarely confronted this
issue, and directly rejected it." He noted that the proposed

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- February 22, 2013



resolution did not change either federal or Al aska statute which
prohi bited direct funding to private religious institutions. He
voi ced caution for the funding of private, secular schools as
t hese schools needed to abide by the non-discrinmnation |aws,
whi ch i ncluded physical or mental disabilities.

8:33:22 AM
LANCE ROBERTS stated his support for proposed HIR 1, saying that

tax payers should not be required to support public schools
while paying nore noney in the form of tuition to a private

school . He specified that the proposed resolution would give
parents a choice and give the legislature the tools to allow
conpetition, which he opined would have great results. He

declared that the public should be allowed to vote on this
i ssue.

8:35: 06 AM

RON ARNCLD, Representati ve, Educat i onal Suppor t St af f
Associ ation (ESSA), stated his opposition to proposed HIR 1,
pointing to data which verified the lack of success from
conpetition. He stressed the inportance of inproving public
education wth support for greater involvenent and greater
teachers; however, it was not necessary to make a change to the
constitution.

8:37:19 AM

ZEBULAN WOODVAN stated his opposition to HIR 1 as it would
subsi di ze private schools, while allow ng operation outside the
state laws for public schools. He said that vouchers took noney
from public school «classroonms, and gave it to "for oprofit,
education corporations, private school operators, and religious
or gani zations." He offered his belief that the voucher system
was a way to privatize schools, with exenptions to state and
federal |aws. He indicated that free narket principles were
al ready working for the school system and that it did not need
government intervention. He pointed out that fixed costs at
public schools would not be decreased with the use of vouchers.
He asked if all applicable federal laws for construction and
mai nt enance woul d al so apply to private school s.

8:40: 01 AM

ANDY HOLLEMAN stated his opposition to proposed HIR 1. He said
that conpetition through school vouchers could lead to the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 22, 2013



opening of a system of schools that "nmany Anchorage students can
never hope to attend.” He opined that this would enable a
segregat ed school system

8:41: 06 AM

JERRY COVEY, Education and Non-Profit Consultant, stated his
support for proposed HIR 1, as he believed in expansion of the
options for the delivery of education to better neet the needs
of students, parents, and enployers. He offered his belief that
an increase to the conpetition within the education system would

translate to inproved education for students. He opined that
school choice should be a fundanental right for every parent
although it was «currently prohibited. He I|anented that

t housands of schools experienced |ow achievenent and |ow rates
of graduation, and that the only choice available for many
students was a failing school. He acknow edged that it was an
unknown for what the school system would look like if the public
approved the proposed resolution; however, he opined that it
woul d spark a conprehensive exam nation of the public education
system

8:43:21 AM

TUCKERVAN BABCOCK stated his support for HIR 1 and di scussed the
schooling for his eight children. He offered his belief that
this was an issue of freedom and that the current school system
was a nonopoly and a bureaucracy. He asked why freedom of
choice for public school was deni ed.

8:44: 37 AM

DOUG HODGES stated his support for proposed HIR 1. He voiced
his desire for inprovenent to the quality of the schools, an end
to the nonopoly of public schools, and freedom of choice for
schools. He endorsed conpetition anong school s.

8:45: 20 AM

TAMW SM TH, Fairbanks Education Association (FEA), established
that Al askan parents had the opportunity to choose progranms in
the public schools that met their child s needs, either through
public charter schools or open enrollnment. She declared that it
was not necessary to change the Al aska State Constitution. She
pointed to data for voucher progranms, which indicated that these
prograns were underperformng the public schools. She decl ared
t hat voucher schools, in nost instances, choose the students,

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 22, 2013



not the other way around, which left out the students wth
| earning disabilities and ot her needs.

8:47:45 AM

TOYA SANDERSON, Fairbanks Support Staff Association (FSSA)
testified during the hearing on HIR 1. She described her work
in the schools as a graduation success coach, and a nenber of

the support staff. Her position had been cut due to the flat
funding, and three years later the graduation rate began to
fall. She stated that parents have always had a choice to be

i nvol ved and engaged in their child' s education, and that choice
still existed.

8:50: 13 AM

ARNOLD COHEN, Pacific Northern Acadeny, testified in opposition
to proposed HIR 1 because, as an independent school, it was
necessary to set its own standards for adm ssion and that
acceptance of public funds would allow public scrutiny and
public school provisions. He declared that this would result in
a loss of the independence. He expressed his concern that the
use of public funds for non-public education would dimnish the
quality of public education. He discussed the possibility of
private diploma-mll conpanies entering the school market and
having | ow standards. He offered his belief that it was the
obligation of the state to oversee the use of public funds. He
guestioned the anount of the vouchers, pointing out that an
i ndependent school, with a class size of less than 15 students,
cost about $19,000 to educate a student. He asked from where
this difference of cost would be provided.

8:53: 02 AM

JESS ELLIS stated his support of HIR 1, declaring that all
Al askans should have the opportunity to vote on this issue.
Commenting on the text which was proposed for deletion, page 1,
lines 8 - 10, he announced that it had been "rooted in bigotry
and for no other reason ought to be repealed.” He opined that
the State of Alaska had a constitutional obligation to provide
for education, and that the current system "has proven to be
nore expensive and |less effective than is the case in other
states.” He offered his belief that there should be the option
to enploy the private sector in education, "especially if the
private sector can produce better results at a |lesser cost." He
suggested that this would be a prudent fiscal option. "Liberty,
freedom conpetition, and unleashing the genius of the private

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- February 22, 2013



sector are all fundanental American and Al askan values," he

rel ayed. He announced that proposed HIR 1 would lead to "nore
choices in education, and a better educated popul ation. I
believe it will lead to an enpowering of good teachers to do

their job better and to better conpensation for doing so. I
also believe it would allow mnorities the greater potential to
escape poor public schools.™

8: 55: 05 AM

TAMM GANGULI, Al aska Parent Teacher Association (PTA), stated
that both the national and Al aska PTA were in opposition to HIR
1 and any school voucher system that would divert public funds
to private or sectarian schools. She stated that the PTA
believed that any home school, or other non-public school,
should neet the sane educational standard as public schools.
Speaking as a parent, she stated that it was her responsibility
to advocate for her children, and that, as every child had
uni que educational needs, it was necessary to have a good,
quality public school system She offered her belief that any
nmoney diverted from the public schools to schools wth other
social and religious preferences would deprive the general
public from an enhanced educati on. She offered her belief that
the discrimnation cane from the private schools. She stated
her opposition to proposed HIR 1.

8:58:13 AM

WANDA LAWS, President, National Association for the Advancenent
of Colored People (NAACP), stated that the NAACP in Anchorage
was in opposition to proposed HIR 1. She questioned where the
funding would be found. She offered her belief that any voucher
program would cause segregation between those who could and
could not afford private schools. She questioned why private
schools, if funded with public noney, should not be held to the
same standards, rules, and certifications as public schools.
She suggested that nore funding for the public schools would
allow for smaller class sizes and prograns. She opined that
|ower inconme and mnority children would "be left out in the
cold" with a voucher program

9:01: 01 AM
BOB GRIFFIN stated his support for proposed HIR 1, as it was
better to fund public education and "not worry about the system

so much." He reported that he was a "proud union nmenber." He
offered his belief that the school system was broken, as Al aska

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- February 22, 2013



spent nore per capita than any other state, yet was at the
bottom of many rankings. He declared that "student outcones has
to be the bottomline." 1In response to Representative Drumond,
he stated that the cost of nobst voucher systens were
substantially less than the base student allocation. He stated
that "poor, disabled, and ethnic people have benefitted the nost
from these prograns across the country."” He declared that the
public school systemwas currently segregated.

9:03: 52 AM

JOHN TOBI A stated his support for proposed HIR 1 and offered a
personal anecdote about the education of his daughter in the
public schools, home school, and private school. He offered his
belief that it was critical that children get "the finest of
education.”

9: 06: 39 AM

CHINH GRIFFIN stated support for proposed HIR 1, and declared
that the people should have the opportunity to vote. [ 1 ndisc. ]
She offered her belief that parents should choose what was best
for the children

9:08: 45 AM

GLEN BI EGEL, Al aska Hone Educators Association, stated that he
had made the choice to have a second job in order to pay for his
children to attend a private school. He offered his belief that
children should have access to the school of their choice, and
that a voucher gave children that opportunity. He expressed his
strong disagreenent with the NAACP representative. He offered
M . Edgecunbe H gh School as an exanple of a successful school
He testified in support of proposed HIR 1, and to "stop trying
to control what parents have choices for."

9:12: 00 AM

DAVID NEES stated his support for proposed HIR 1. Directing
attention to the proposed resolution, he reflected on Day 44 of
the Al aska constitutional convention in 1957, when an argunent
had ensued about direct and indirect aid, and support for
secul ar schools. He pleaded for the proposed resolution to pass
so that there could be public discussion and a vote on the
proposed resol ution. He observed that Al aska had changed and
that the Al aska today was no |onger the Al aska of 1947 and 1957.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 15- February 22, 2013



9:14:49 AM

LAWRENCE WEI SS described an anecdote about the struggles of his
grandparents to receive an education in Russia, and that their
values had included a strong opinion for no state involvenent
with private education. He declared that he shared these views
for the necessity that religious and private schools had to be
i ndependent of state funding, which he opined was consistent
with both the U S. and Al aska State Constitution. He decl ared
that he was agai nst the proposed resol ution.

9:17:46 AM

JANE ANVI C declared that she had previously served as a nenber
of the Anchorage Muinicipal Assenbly, which was tasked with the
establishment of tax rates for the financing of public
educati on. She stated her opposition to proposed HIR 1, and
opined that the use of public funding for other than public
education would erode the public education system She offered
her belief that it was incunbent upon the State of Alaska to
ensure provision of a system of education that provided access
for all students to as good an education as possible. She
opined that draining financial resources from the public
education system would be harnful to that system She decl ared
that the reduction of financial opportunities for expansion of
the public education system would inprove graduation and
per formance rates. She opined that public noney needed to be
devoted to public education. She declared that this [public
school] was the principal fundanmental nethodology for students
to learn to read and wite. She stated that the managenent of
the resources of the State of Alaska had to include support of
t he public school system

9:19: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON, pointing to the data from the Lower
48, asked if it was appropriate to use that data for conparison

M5. ANVIC replied that it was appropriate to neke this
compari son

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if the size of Al aska contri buted
to the high spending per student.

M5. ANVIC replied that there were many reasons, and that size

and distance were not the |east of these. She pointed out that
t he school budget appropriation in Anchorage had been reduced by

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 16- February 22, 2013



$25 mllion, and she offered her belief that the state had a
responsibility to assist all the school districts in the state,
declaring a need to support the public educational system

9:21:46 AM

VI CTOR FI SCHER poi nted out that anending the state constitution
was a very serious matter, and that the burden of proof was on
those who would like to make this anendnent to the Al aska State
Consti tution. Noting that he was a nenber of the state
constitutional convention, he offered his belief that the casual
approach of allowing the people to vote was a "lousy" argunent.
He reported that the constitutional |[|anguage, the sane text
proposed for deletion by HIR 1, had been unani nously accepted.
He decl ared that education was a function of each state, so that
the aforenentioned text was not part of the U S Constitution.
He declared his opposition to proposed HIR 1, stating that the
public education system was funded with public noney, and any
program approved through passage of HIJR 1, would be a direct
benefit to religious and for-profit institutions. He decl ared
that he did not support public funds being directed to religious
and for-profit schools.

CHAIR GATTIS said that, as public noney was already going into
private and religious institutions, this was a dilemma which the
| egi slature was attenpting to reconcile.

MR. FISCHER, in response, stated that the situation was stil
open enough that the law allowed the opportunity for schol arship
prograns. He noted that this could continue until a |egal
chall enge was brought and the Alaska Suprene Court nmade a
ruling.

CHAI R GATTI S expressed her agreenent.
9:27:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND reiterated that the burden of proof was
on those who would change the constitution. Referring to her
earlier question posed to the sponsor of the resolution
regarding the source of funding, she pointed out that his
response had been that funding was not the question with regard
to HHR 1. She asked what M. Fischer would determne to be the
burden of proof for the legislature to put this question to the
vot ers.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -17- February 22, 2013



MR. FISCHER replied that the basic question was whether this
resolved a non-existent problem He opined that there was not a
fundanmental problemw th the existing constitutional |anguage.

9:29: 21 AM

LAURA BONNER stated her opposition to HIR 1 and that it "opens
the door to allow discrimnation for special needs students and

to lower incone famlies.”" She opined that it blurred the line
between church and state, and did not define any direct
educational benefit. She offered her belief that legislators

woul d be negligent and fiscally irresponsible with passage of
this resolution.

9: 30: 45 AM
DAN LORI NG declared that it was difficult to state whether he

was for or against the resolution, and he asked the commttee to
consi der what was best for the children, especially the students

in some neighborhood schools. He declared that often | ower
soci o-economc and mnority children had been |eft behind. He
stated that good teachers and good adm nistrators would assi st
children with success "at an extrenely high |evel." He called

for a focus on the chronically underperform ng neighborhood
school s and the student needs.

9:33:21 AM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), stated that AASB was opposed to proposed HIR 1.
He expl ained that nenbers of the AASB had taken the sane oath as
| egislators, swearing to support and defend the Alaska State
Constitution. Noting that, as nine of wevery ten children
attended public schools, it was necessary to maintain a quality
public school system He declared the difficulty to "connect
the dots" between the proposed constitutional change and
i mprovenent of the school system He enphasized that there were
uni nt ended consequences from the proposed resolution, and that
passage would nake it necessary to revisit case |aw, statutes,

regul ations, and the current school structure. He stated that
choi ce, although a good thing in and of itself, was not enough
of an argunent for constitutional change. He stressed that

accountability was the nost inportant issue, pointing out that
acceptance of state dollars necessitated satisfaction of state
out cones.

9:36: 13 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 18- February 22, 2013



MARY GRAHAM stated her opposition to HIR 1, and declared that
the dilution of public education funding would not result in the
attainment of the stated graduation goals. She pointed to the
use of vouchers in other school systenms as an attenpt to
redirect public funds to religious education. She declared that
it was necessary to focus on quality public education, that
there was already choice within the public school system and
that it was not necessary to anend the state constitution.

9:37:49 AM

MR. POUND asked that questions from the commttee be submtted
to the bill sponsor, and that witten responses would be
provi ded. He announced that the proposed resolution was only a
step toward the possibility of school choice, which would not be
addressed until the 29th Legi sl ature.

9:38: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to the testinony by Victor
Fi sher, asked whether the sponsor agreed with the responsibility
of the legislature for the ramfications to a constitutional
anendnent, or was the sponsor nerely responsible for the
"individual words that are on a constitutional anmendnent."” He
pointed to the necessity of a two-thirds vote for agreenent by
each body of the legislature for passage of a change to the
constitution, and then to the subsequent passage by 51 percent
of the people. He established that the questions posed
regarding funding to the current 9,600 private school students
had been declared by the sponsor to not be necessary for
response at this tine. He questioned the "firewall" by the
sponsor's declaration that the legislature "should only consider
the exact words, and not the ramfication, of renoving the
prohibition for direct benefit for any religious or other
private educational institution from the constitution, and what
t hat would allow "

9:40: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated that, of the 40 attenpts put
forward to amend the Al aska State Constitution, 28 anmendnents
had been successful, and included the rights to vote for 18 year
olds, prohibition of sexual discrimnation, <creation of a
limted entry fishing permt system creation of the Al aska
per mmnent fund, and assertion of the right to privacy.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -19- February 22, 2013



9:41: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the sponsor of the proposed
resolution to address the question for a funding cap to the
private schools simlar to those on the public schools.

CHAI R GATTI S, apologizing for interrupting, interjected that the
di scussion was for a constitutional anmendnent, and that his
guestions were prenature.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that the ramfications for a
proposed constitutional anmendnment were inportant to understand,
and he mai ntai ned his question.

MR. POUND, referring to the attached fiscal note, [Included in
menbers' packets] stated that there was no funding issue
attached to the resolution. He stated that discussion of
fundi ng should be "down the road."

CHAIR GATTIS expressed her agreenent that the questions were
premat ur e.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON mai ntai ned his desire for an understandi ng
to the federal requirenents that could occur with passage of the
proposed resol ution.

CHAIR GATTIS offered her belief that this would be a discussion
af ter passage of the resolution by the people of Al aska.

9:44: 06 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON opined that an understanding of the
ram fications from passage of a constitutional anmendnent was
inportant for the voters to conprehend, and that she supported
the questions proposed by comittee nenbers. She offered an
analogy to a funding pie, which was limted in its size, and
would result in smaller distributions should there be nore
all ocations. She declared that it was necessary for Al askans to
understand these ram fications.

CHAIR GATTIS replied "I don't even know what it neans, except
for that the people wll choose, and we wll have grand
conversation and big debate on what it truly means." She stood

firm in her conviction that the people of Alaska trusted the
| egi sl ature to nmake the right choi ce.

9:47: 39 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 20- February 22, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND expressed her agreenment wth the
comments of Representative Seaton and Representative P. WIson
She stated that it was the fiscal responsibility of the
conmttee to understand the possible funding for t he
af orenenti oned 9, 600 students.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that there were 9,600 students
in private and religious schools who could be inpacted by
f undi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMMOND asked to clarify that this nunber of
students had been reported by the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent.

9:49: 22 AM

JODI E TAYLOR stated her support for HIR 1, declaring that state
and federal funding should be available for people in their
choi ce of school s.

9:50: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER enphasized that the proposed resolution
was sinply a constitutional anmendnent to allow a system and
that there should not be discussion for ranifications until
"consideration of that law would be nade." He declared that
this was a nulti-step process.

CHAI R GATTI S prai sed his el oquence
9:51: 33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he was not searching for

specific exanples, but that it was necessary to understand other
| aws and provisions in the Al aska State Constitution which would

be affected with passage of the proposed resolution. He asked
for a better wunderstanding to the neaning of the proposed
amendnent . He opined that it was necessary to have a "high bar

to understand and to be able to explain, when it goes to the
vote of the people, why."

CHAIR GATTIS summarized that the sponsor should explain what

other parts of the state constitution would be affected, wth
regard to education, by passage of proposed HIR 1.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -21- February 22, 2013



CHAI R GATTI S announced that HIR 1 would be held over. She |eft
public testinony open.

9:53: 53 AM
ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:53 a. m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -22- February 22, 2013



